

vRealize Log Insight Evaluation Guide

VMWARE TECHNICAL MARKETING 2018

Table of Contents

| Introduction | 3 |
|--|----|
| Evaluation Installation and Setup | 3 |
| Installing the OVA | 4 |
| Initial Log Insight Configuration Wizard | 14 |
| vSphere Integration | 20 |
| Add Windows Content Pack | 24 |
| Installing and Configuring the Log Insight Agent | 27 |
| How to Use Log Insight | 36 |
| Dashboards | 37 |
| Interactive Analytics | 57 |
| Events | 58 |
| Build a Query | 59 |
| Events Types | 72 |
| Event Trends | 80 |
| Windows Content Pack | 86 |
| Appendix | 90 |
| vRealize Operations Integration | 90 |
| Install Cluster Nodes | 95 |
| Log Insight System Monitor | |

Introduction

This document outlines the process to evaluate VMware vRealize Log Insight. This document provides details on product installation and configuration; then guides you through using Log Insight.

The evaluation includes two easy-to-follow sections:

- Installation and Setup
- How to Use Log Insight

For more details and information, please use the following references:

- The Appendix of this document contains sections that will help you during the evaluation.
- <u>YouTube Log Insight Playlist</u> Contains videos that will help you better understand vRealize Log Insight
- vRealize Log Insight Product page

Evaluation Installation and Setup

Follow standard deployment methods for an OVF/OVA in the vSphere client of your choice. For specifics on deploying vRealize Log Insight, follow the steps below and reference the following video:

Log Insight Installation and Configuration Video

Installing the OVA



- 1. Browse to the vRealize Log Insight Appliance OVA.
- 2. Click Next.

OVA REVIEW DETAILS

| Deploy OVF Template | | | (?) |
|---|--------------------------------------|---|-------------------------|
| 1 Source ✓ 1a Selectsource | Review details Verify the OVF tem | plate details | |
| 1b Review details 1c Accept License Accept accept | Product | VMware vRealize Log Insight | |
| 2 Destination | Vendor | VMware Inc. 1 | |
| 2a Select name and folder | Publisher | ② No certificate present | |
| 2b Select configuration | Download size | 611.4 MB Less than 1 MB (thin provisioned) | |
| 2d Setup networks | Size on disk | 132.4 GB (thick provisioned) | |
| 2 e Customize template | Decomption | Villware vicenze zog morgin | - |
| 3 Ready to complete | | | 2 |
| | | | Back Next Finish Cancel |

- 1. Verify the OVF template details.
- 2. Click Next.

OVA ACCEPT EULA

| Dep | oloy OVF Template | | ? ₩ |
|-----|---------------------------------|---|---------|
| | 1 Source | Accept License Agreements | |
| ~ | 1a Select source | You must read and accept the license agreements associated with this template before continuing. | |
| ~ | 1b Review details | | |
| | 1c Accept License Agreements | VMWARE END USER LICENSE AGREEMENT | ▲ :: |
| | 2 Destination | PLEASE NOTE THAT THE TERMS OF THIS END USER LICENSE AGREEMENT SHALL GOVERN | |
| | 2a Select name and folder | YOUR USE OF THE SOFTWARE, REGARDLESS OF ANY TERMS THAT MAY APPEAR DURING THE INSTALLATION OF THE SOFTWARE. | |
| | 2b Select configuration | | |
| | 2c Select storage | YOU (THE INDIVIDUAL OR LEGAL ENTITY) AGREE TO BE BOUND BY THE TERMS OF THIS | |
| | 2d Setup networks | END USER LICENSE AGREEMENT ("EULA"). IF YOU DO NOT AGREE TO THE TERMS OF THIS | |
| | 2 e Customize template | OR RETURN THE UNUSED SOFTWARE TO THE VENDOR FROM WHICH YOU ACQUIRED IT WITHIN | |
| | 3 Ready to complete | THIRTY (30) DAYS AND REQUEST A REFUND OF THE LICENSE FEE, IF ANY, THAT YOU PAID FOR THE SOFTWARE. | |
| | | EVALUATION LICENSE. If You are licensing the Software for evaluation purposes, Your use of the Software is only permitted in a non-production environment and for the period limited by the License Key. Notwithstanding any other provision in this EULA, an Evaluation License of the Software is provided "AS-IS" without indemnification, support or warranty of any kind, expressed or implied. | ¥ |
| | | Accept 1 | |
| | | Back Next Finish | Cancel |

- 1. Click Accept.
- 2. Click Next.

Choose a Name and Destination

| Deploy OVF Template | | (?) |
|---|---|--|
| 1 Source 1a Select source 1b Review details 1c Accept License 1c Arcente se | Select name and folder Specify a name and location for the deployed template | |
| 2 Destination 2a Select name and folder 2b Select configuration 2c Select storage 2d Setup networks 2e Customize template 3 Ready to complete | Q Search ▼ @ | The folder you select is where the entity will be located, and will be used to apply permissions to it. The name of the entity must be unique within each vCenter Server VM folder. |
| | | Back Next Finish Cancel |

- 1. Name the Log Insight VM.
- 2. Select a datacenter or target folder.
- 3. Click Next.

Sizing



1. Pick a **configuration size.** Typically **small** is used for an evaluation. For more information on sizing please consult the Log Insight documentation: <u>Sizing guidance</u>.

2. Click **Next**.

| 1 Source 1a Select source | Select storage Select location to store t | he files for t | he deployed temp | late | | | |
|--|---|------------------------------|---|-------------------------------------|------------------------|-------------------|------------------|
| 1b Review details 1c Accept EULAs | Select virtual disk forma VM Storage Policy: | t Thick Pr | ovision Eager Zer | oed 🔹 | | | |
| 2 Destination 2a Select name and folder | The following datastore virtual machine configu | s are acces ation files a | sible from the des ind all of the virtua | stination resource that I disks. | t you selected. Select | the destination d | atastore for the |
| 2b Select configuration | Name | | Capacity | Provisioned | Free | Туре | Storage DR |
| 2c Select storage | 🗐 vsan | | 14.55 TB | 3.46 TB | 11.09 TB | vsan | |
| 2d Setup networks | 🗐 ntp | | 1.00 TB | 750.05 GB | 968.23 GB | NFS | |
| 2e Customize template | ntp_all_sata_n1_1 | 000_xfer | 1.00 TB | 104.61 GB | 919.39 GB | NFS | |
| 3 Ready to complete | local_c2b2 | | 924.00 GB | 80.07 GB | 914.47 GB | VMFS | |
| o notaly to complete | local_c2b3 | | 924.00 GB | 30.07 GB | 909.85 GB | VMFS | |
| | 🗐 ntp | | 1.00 TB | 630.52 GB | 909.18 GB | NFS | |
| | local_c2b4 | | 924.00 GB | 30.07 GB | 906.78 GB | VMFS | |
| | local_c2b1 | | 924.00 GB | 185.40 GB | 875.42 GB | VMFS | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |

Choose the Target Storage

1. Choose **target storage** for the VM. Deploy the vRealize Log Insight virtual appliance with thick provisioned eager zeroed disks whenever possible for better performance and operation of the virtual appliance.

2. Click **Next**.

Select Network

| De | ploy OVF Template | | | | (?) ₩ |
|----------|---------------------------------|---|------------------|---------------------------|---------------|
| | 1 Source | Setup networks Configure the networks the deployed tem | plate should use | | |
| ~ | 1a Select source | | | | |
| ~ | 1b Review details | Source | | Destination | Configuration |
| ~ | 1c Accept License Agreements | Network 1 | VM Network | | |
| | 2 Destination | | | | |
| ~ | 2a Select name and folder | | | | |
| ~ | 2b Select configuration | | | | |
| ~ | 2c Select storage | IP protocol: IPv4 | • IP allo | cation: Static - Manual 🕕 | |
| ~ | 2d Setup networks | | | | |
| | 2e Customize template | Source: Network 1 - Description | | | |
| | 3 Ready to complete | The "Network 1" network | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | Destination: VM Network - Protocol sett | ings | | |
| | | No configuration needed for this network | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | 9 | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | Back Next Fin | nish Cancel |

1. Select a **network** which provides access to DNS and NTP services as well as Active Directory and DHCP if required. Additionally the network should allow access to endpoints that will be used for log ingestion

2. Click **Next**.

(Note: if a cluster installation is planned, all cluster nodes must be installed

on the same Layer 2 network.)

| Deploy OVF Template | | ? W |
|---|--|---|
| 1 Source ✓ 1a Selectsource | Customize template Customize the deployment p | properties of this software solution |
| 1b Review details | All properties have valid | values Show next Collapse all |
| 1c Agreements | | 5 settings |
| 2 Destination | Hostname | The hostname or the fully qualified domain name for this VM. Leave blank if DHCP is desired. |
| ✓ 2a Select name and folder | | |
| 2b Select configuration | Network 1 IP Address | The IP address for this interface. Leave blank if DHCP is desired. |
| 2c Select storage | | |
| 2d Setup networks | Network 1 Netmask | The netmask or prefix for this interface. Leave blank if DHCP is desired. |
| ✓ 2e Customize template | | |
| 3 Ready to complete | Default Gateway | The default gateway address for this VM. Leave blank if DHCP is desired. |
| | DNS | The domain name servers for this VM (comma separated). Leave blank if DHCP is desired. WARNIN(not specify more than two DNS entries or no DNS entries will be configured! |
| | ▶ Other Properties | 2 settings |
| | | 2 |
| | | Back Next Finish Cancel |

Configure Network Settings

1. Configure the appropriate **network setting** for the VM. Leave the fields blank for DHCP assignment.

2. Click **Next**.

(**Note:** It is highly recommended to use an FQDN entry for the vRealize Log Insight virtual machine.)

| Deploy OVF Template | | | ? Þ |
|---|---|---|-------|
| 1 Source | Ready to complete Review your settings selections be | efore finishing the wizard. | |
| 1a Select source | | | |
| 1b Review details | OVF file | Z:\VMware Bits\Log Insight\VMware-vRealize-Log-Insight-3.0.0-3021606.ova | |
| Accept License Agreements | Download size | 611.4 MB | |
| 2 Destination | Size on disk | Less tran TMB | |
| ✓ 2a Select name and folder | Deployment configuration | Small | |
| 2b Select configuration | Datastore | DS-SSD | |
| 2c Select storage | Target | host55.test.lab | |
| 2d Potup potworks | Folder | Datacenter | |
| Zu Setup networks | Disk storage | Thin Provision | |
| 2e Customize template | Network mapping | Network 1 to VM Network | |
| 3 Ready to complete | IP allocation | Static - Manual, IPv4 | |
| | Properties | Hostname = Network 1 IP Address = Network 1 Netmask = Default Gateway = DNS = SSH Public Key = | |
| | Power on after deployment | Back Next Finish C | ancel |

Confirm the Installation Settings

- 1. **Optionally** choose Power on after deployment.
- 2. Click **Finish**.

VM Deployment



Wait for the VM to deploy and start.

Once the vRealize Log Insight VM is running, you can point a browser at the appliance IP address or FQDN, and move to the configuration wizard.

Next

Initial Log Insight Configuration Wizard

Setup

Welcome to vRealize Log Insight

We'll walk through a few settings first. Click 'Next' to begin.

After entering the Log Insight VM's IP address or FQDN, the configuration wizard will appear.

Click **Next** to continue.

(**Note:** These steps assume the Log Insight OVA has already been deployed and the VM has started.)

Choose Deployment Type

| Choose D | eployment Type | | |
|---------------|--|--|--|
| Are (If th | e you starting a new Log Insight dep is is your first time running Log Insi | ployment or joining an existing one? ght, choose "Start New Deployment".) | |
| | Join Existing Deployment | Start New Deployment | |
| | | | |

Choose Start New Deployment.

(**Note:** Log Insight supports up to a 12 node cluster installation. For this evaluation we are focusing on installing a single node. Installation of additional cluster nodes is covered in the appendix of this evaluation guide.)

Admin Credentials

| Admin Credentials | | | |
|----------------------|-------|------------|----------|
| Username | admin | | |
| Email | | | |
| New password | | 1 | 0 |
| Confirm new password | | | |
| | | 2 |) |
| | | Save and C | Continue |

- 1. Enter the **email address and password** for the admin account.
- 2. Click Save and Continue.

License Key

| License | | |
|--------------|-----------------|----------|
| License Key: | Add License Key | 1 |
| Back | 2 | Continue |

1. Add the **evaluation license key** that was obtained from MyVMware.com. Click **Add Licence Key**.

2. Click **Continue**

System Notifications

| General Configuration | |
|---|--|
| Enter a comma-separated list of ema notifications are generated when imp start rotating out data because the di | ail addresses where system notifications should be sent. These ortant system events occur (e.g., when Log Insight is about to isk is full). |
| Email System Notifications To | Comma-separated list of emails |
| Customer Experience Improvement I | Program |
| Once per week, Log Insight will send information allows us to create the be prioritize development resources tows | anonymized Trace Data to VMware via encrypted email. This st possible product for you. VMware will use collected information to ards features and fixes that are most valuable to our customers. |
| For details on Trace Data and how it i the Online Help. | s used, please see the Customer Experience Improvement section of |
| Send weekly Trace Data to VMwa | re as part of the Customer Experience Improvement Program |
| | 2 |
| Back | Save and Continue |

- 1. Enter an **email address** where **system notifications** will be sent.
- 2. Select Save and Continue.

Configure NTP

| Browser Time | Nov 12, 2015 10:08:17 AM UTC-06:00 |
|-------------------------------|---|
| Server Time | Nov 12, 2015 10:08:17 AM UTC-06:00 Note: server time is displayed in the browser's time zone |
| Sync Server Time With | NTP server (recommended) |
| NTP Servers (comma-separated) | 0.vmware.pool.ntp.org, 1.vmware.pool.ntp.org, 2.vmware.pool.ntp.org, 3.vmware.pool.ntp.org |
| 9 | Test Note: test may take up to 20 seconds per server |

1. Using the **default NTP server** option to synchronize time within vRealize Log Insight is **highly recommended**. If an external NTP server is not accessible due to firewall settings, you can use an internal NTP server from your organization or **optionally an ESXi Host**.

2. You may leave the default NTP servers or choose your own. Use commas to separate multiple NTP servers. Click **Test** to verify the listed NTP servers.

3. Click Save and Continue.

Configure SMTP

SMTP Configuration

SMTP settings are used to enable outgoing email for alerts and important system notifications.

| SMTP Server | localhost | |
|---------------------|------------------------|--------------|
| Port | 25 | |
| SSL (SMTPS) | | 0 |
| STARTTLS Encryption | | 0 |
| Sender | loginsight@example.com | 0 |
| Username | Optional | |
| Password | Optional | |
| Email address | Send Test Email 2 | _ |
| Back | Skip | and Continue |

1. Enter SMTP server information to enable outgoing email for alerts and system notifications.

2. Click **Send Test Email** to validate the SMTP server settings and credentials.

3. Click Save and Continue.

Complete Initial Configuration

| Setup Complete |
|---|
| All done! |
| You're now ready to start using Log Insight. Enjoy! |
| Back |

Click Finish.

VMWARE TECHNICAL MARKETING 2018 - PAGE | 19

vSphere Integration

Ready to Ingest Data

Log Insight is configured and ready to collect logs. Here are some ways you can get log data into Log Insight:



vSphere Integration

Log Insight can integrate with vSphere to automatically ingest events from vCenter server and logs from ESXi hosts.

Configure vSphere integration »



Agents

Log Insight has collection agents available to send files and event logs from Linux or Windows to Log Insight.

Download and Install Agents »



Syslog

Log Insight can ingest data from any source via syslog. Just set the Log Insight server as your syslog destination.

You can also visit the Admin Page to enable Active Directory, Archiving, vRealize Operations integration and more. For additional documentation, see the Online Help.

To ingest data from vSphere, you must configure Log Insight to collect data from vCenter Server(s) and configure ESXi Hosts to forward Syslog. When using this integration, Log Insight collects structured data in the form of events, tasks, and alarms from vCenter and unstructured log data from ESXi Hosts.

For this step, you will need the FQDN or IP of all the vCenter Servers to be used for the evaluation.

Click Configure vSphere Integration.

Configure Integration

| Management | vSphere Integration | |
|-----------------------------------|--|--|
| System Monitor Cluster | vCenter Servers | 3 |
| Access Control Hosts Agents | Hostname vCenter.domain.com Username username 1 Password | Collect vCenter Server events, tasks, and alarms Configure ESXi hosts to send logs to Log Insight Advanced options |
| License | 2 Test Connection | 4 |
| vSphere | | |
| vRealize Operations | Save 5 | |

You can integrate additional vCenter Servers with associated ESXi Hosts by clicking **Add vCenter Server**

1. Enter the **Hostname** of the vCenter server where Log Insight will collect events, tasks, and alarms.

The user account must have at a minimum, **System.View privileges in vCenter and the ability to change syslog settings within ESXi**.

2. Click Test Connection to validate new connection.

3. Verify the checkboxes for **Collect vCenter Server events, tasks, and** alarms and Configure ESXi hosts to send logs to Log Insight are checked.

4. (**Optional**) The typical process configures all associated ESXi Hosts to forward logs to Log Insight. Alternatively you can configure (or unconfigure) specific ESXi Hosts instead of every Host. To configure individual hosts, click **Advanced options** and **move to the next step** <u>before</u> clicking Save on **#5**.

5. Click Save

Choose Specific ESXi Hosts

| rine | r by host | | | | | | |
|------|---------------------------|----------|--------|------------|----------|--------------|---|
| | Host | * | Info ≑ | Version 🔶 | Build \$ | Configured 💠 | |
| | h-vesxi01.mgmt.local | | | ESXi 5.5.0 | 2143827 | Yes (UDP) | * |
| | h-vesxi02.mgmt.local | | | ESXi 5.5.0 | 2143827 | Yes (UDP) | |
| | w2-sm-c2b1.mgmt.local | | | ESXi 5.5.0 | 2143827 | Yes (UDP) | |
| | w2-sm-c2b2.mgmt.local | | | ESXi 5.5.0 | 2143827 | Yes (UDP) | |
| | w2-sm-c2b3.mgmt.local | \smile | | ESXi 5.5.0 | 2143827 | Yes (UDP) | |
| | w2-sm-c2b4.mgmt.local | | | ESXi 5.5.0 | 2143827 | Yes (UDP) | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | ÷ |
| | 2 | | | | | | Ŧ |
| Sysl | og protocol: O UDP O TC | P © SSL | | | | 3 |) |

Advanced options show the associated ESXi Hosts for the configured vCenter.

- 1. Select the ESXi Hosts to configure for this evaluation
- 2. Choose a Syslog protocol option
- 3. Select Configure.

(**Note:** To reset the syslog configuration on a Host to the previous configuration, select **Unconfigure**.)

You will need to click Save on the vSphere Integration screen to complete the integration. This was covered on #5 of the previous step.

| vmware Log I | Insight 📰 Dashboards 🛛 Q. Interactive Analytics | 💄 admin - 😑 - |
|---|--|--|
| 2016-01-05 13:59:04 | 4 Io 14.04.04 (S mitudes) | 👩 Snapshot 📑 Add to Dashboard |
| 200 | Count of events over time | |
| | | |
| 100 | | 140530 140400 |
| Count of events + | + over line - Audu Reset 1 bar = | 5 seconds - Chart Type II Automatic - |
| | 🚖 🔹 Latest 5 minutes of data 📼 🔍 | 💉 📑 🌲 🗠 |
| + Add Filter | 2016-01-05 13:59:04:196 to 2016-01-05 14:04:0 | 4.771 |
| Events Field Tab | ble Event Types Event Trends 1 to 50 out of 1,510 events View - Sort Newest First - | Fields 🥖 🙌 |
| 2016-01-05 [2 14:04:04:54 55 [R (Sh 60 (b) | <pre>816-01-05 30:04/04_05440801 [http:bic=44]-exc=c4/12_158_1.46 IW(0] [cox, wmare_loginsight.web_action_instrumentationActionEduct) [Education_instrumentationActionEduct) [Education_instrumentationActionEduct]]</pre> | appname build_number duster_guid duster_guid duster_guid duster_guid devent_type dispath dispath |
| 2016-01-05 28 14:04:04:195 50 | 16-01-05120:33:07.0262 host50.test.lab Hostd: [35172070 verbose 'Cinsvc'] Ticket issued for CDMOM version 1.0, user root unce event_type hostname appname vmv_esu_seventy | thac_capabilities trac_group session_guid |
| 2016-01-05 [2 14:04:03:769 sol | 016-01-05 20:04:03.769-0000][Indexer-2-Commit-Timer/192.168.1,46 IN/O][com.vmware.loginsight.indexing.indexer][Added 13 messages to index.] urce appname buid_number cluster_guid event_type Nepath hostname node_guid session_guid version java_thread node_address seventy java_cbas | severity source user_agent |
| 2016-01-05 [2 14:04:02:999 95 Sa [R so: rb; | ol6-01-05 20:04:02.999:0000] [http-bio-44)-exec-4/192.168.1.46 [W0] [com.vmsure.loginsight.web.actions.instrumentationActionBeam] [[Cluster10: 02Dicd2:a3Dd-40bb- 62:36503bd104] [Li Version: 3.0.0] [UserAgent: Mozilla75.0 (Yindows XI 10.0; Nin4: x45) AppleMebLi(57).75 (Olima, 1.1ke Gecko) Chrome/A7.0.2526.106 far/1573.76] [UserDi: aced061-474-478-4832-482-414354bd-00] [BbC Capabilities: User 34C Group: Super Admin] PageClosed: General - Overview Whare - vSphere DashBoards vKe3Lize Log Insight] User Appalme Multi, muber cluster_juid event_jppe Nepath hostname node_guid session_guid version java_Bread node_sddres seventy java_dass user_agent user_jd ac_apabilities rbac_group page_status page | suser_id version mmw_esxi_severity(v/Annexe-uSpn |
| 2016-01-05 [2 14:04:02:877 so | 016-01-05 20:04:02.077+0000) [LeoScheduler-thread-1/192.108.1.46 INIO] [con.vmware.loginsight.spock.leo.Leofmanger] [Leo2l cluster mode] size=1052] urce appname buik[_mumber cluster_guid even[_hpe filepath hostname mode_guid session_guid version jara_thread mode_address seventhy java_dass | |
| 2016-01-05 E2 14:04:02:877 14 so | 916-01-05 20:04:02.877-0000] [LeoScheduler-thread-1/192:168.1.46 INIO] [con.vmware.loginsight.spock.leo.LeoManager] [Average duration for full cluster model update: notc] use appname build_mumber cluster_guid event_hype filepath hodmame node_guid session_guid version jara_thread node_address seventy jara_dass | |
| 2016-01-05 [2 14.04:02.874 cl | 918-0-1-62 20:04:02.874-0000] [LeoScheduler-thread-1/192.168,1.46 INIO] [con.vmware.loginsight.spock.usl.1.SpockLassandruDatabase] [Leosl Leo discovered 2 new user appname build_mumber cluster_guid event_hype Repath hodname node_guid session_guid version jara_thread node_address severly jara_dass | |
| 2016-01-05 28 14:04:02.848 50 | 16-01-05120:04:02.8442 Host51.test.lab vmkrnel: cpu1:J4646)World: 14296: VC opID Hostd-b514 maps to vmkernel opID 9794949 urce even_bype hostname appname vmvv_eoi_vmk_vord4 vmvv_eoi_vmk_component | |
| 2016-01-05 28 14.04.02.848 so | 16-01-05120:04:02.8442 Host51.test.lab vmkernel: cpu1;34646)World: 14296: VC opID Hostd-b514 maps to vmkernel opID 9794949 urce event_hppe hostname appname vmv.epsi_vmk_voodd vmv.epsi_vmk_component | |
| 2016-01-05 [2 14:04:01:256 so | 815-81-85-28:84:81,256-8080] [Indexer-1-Comit-Timer/192,168.1.46 INFO] [com.vmare.loginsight.indexing.indexer] [Added 83 messages to index.] urce appname buid_mumber cluster_guid event_type Repath hodname node_guid session_guid version java_thread node_address seventh java_dass | |

vSphere Integration Complete

With vSphere integration complete, log events will be ingested from vCenter and ESXi Hosts.

Click the **Interactive Analytics button** to verify log messages are available.

Navigate to Content Packs



1. On the upper right portion of the Log Insight interface, click the **three bars**.

2. Click Content Packs

Add Windows Content Pack



The Content Pack Marketplace is where you can access content packs for VMware and non-VMware products. Content Packs include domain specific queries, alerts, dashboards, field extractions and agent group templates for their associated products. A content pack is not required to ingest logs from a specific product. Essentially the content pack makes it easier and faster to find critical log data by highlighting and alerting you to common issues that are present in the ingested log data. As a result, troubleshooting and root cause analysis efforts take significantly less time.

1. Click Marketplace

2. Previously installed Content Packs are listed below the Marketplace as well any custom Content Packs that have been created by a Log Insight user.

3. Click the **Microsoft - Windows Content Pack**.

Install the Windows Content Pack



Click **Install** then Click **OK**.

Content Pack Post-Install

| Content Pack Marketplace Marketplace Updates Installed Content Packs Microsoft - Active Directory VMware - vSphere General | Microsoft - Windows Version: 3.0 Author: VWware, Inc. Website: Mthy Wraw University Description: The content pact Dashboards Queries Alerts | Export re. Setup Ins Uninstall Agent Gro | structions |
|--|---|---|---|
| Microsoft - Windows | Dashboards | | |
| Custom Content | General - Overview | | n - |
| My Content | Widget Name | Widget Type | Notes |
| Shared Content | ontent Total number of events over time O | Chart Chart | The total number of events received over time. An increase in events may point to a change in the environment wh |
| | | | For common System events, see System Event Log Error IDs. For Security events, see Vista and Server 2008, W |
| | Hostnames with the most events | | The host names with the highest number of events. An increase in events may point to a change on a hostname wi |
| | | | For common System events, see System Event Log Error IDs. For Security events, seeVista and Server 2008, With |
| | Total number of critical and error events over | Chart | The total number of critical and error events received over time. An increase in events may point to a change in the |
| | time O | | For common System events, see System Event Log Error IDs. For Security events, see Vista and Server 2008, W |
| | Total number of events over time grouped by level | Chart | The total number of events received over time by level. Windows event levels can be Critical, Error, Warning, Inforr events may be an indication of an issue in the environment. |
| | | | For common System events, see System Event Log Error IDs. For Security events, see Vista and Server 2008, W |
| | Total number of warning events over time | Chart | The total number of warning events received over time. An increase in events may point to a change in the environ |
| | | | For common System events, see System Event Log Error IDs. For Security events, see Vista and Server 2008, W |
| | Provider names with the most events < | Chart | The provider names with the highest number of events. An increase in events may point to a change in the environ |
| | | | For common System events, see System Event Log Error IDs. For Security events, see Vista and Server 2008, W |
| | | | |

Once a Content Pack is installed you can examine the available options.

1. Click the gear to Export, view Setup Instructions, or Uninstall

2. Click the tabs to view the Dashboards, Queries, Alerts, Agent Groups, and Extracted Fields which are provided with the Content Pack

(**Note:** Extracted fields are keywords that are added to the index. These fields make searching and finding specific log events faster and more efficient. Each field is based on product specific naming within logs, product configurations, and common errors or events.)

Installing and Configuring the Log Insight Agent



1. On the upper right portion of the Log Insight interface, click the **three bars**.

2. Select Administration.

Agents Installation

| OS ¢ SUSE Linux Enterprise Server 11 (x86_64) SUSE Linux Enterprise | Last Active A | Events Sent |
|--|------------------------|-------------|
| OS ¢ SUSE Linux Enterprise Server 11 (x86_64) | Last Active A | Events Sent |
| OS SUSE Linux Enterprise Server 11 (x86_64) SUSE Linux Enterprise | Last Active A | Events Sent |
| OS SUSE Linux Enterprise Server 11 (x86_64) | Last Active 🔺 | Events Sent |
| SUSE Linux Enterprise Server 11 (x86_64) | Less than 1 minute ago | |
| SUSE Linux Enterprise | | 5,137,294 |
| Server 11 (x86_64) | Less than 1 minute ago | 1,099,359 |
| Microsoft Windows Server 2008 R2 Enterprise | Less than 1 minute ago | 352,514 |
| SUSE Linux Enterprise Server 11 (x86_64) | Less than 1 minute ago | 540,887 |
| | | |
| | | |

1. Within the Administration interface, **select Agents**. The Agents section shows configured agent information and status.

2. Click **Download Log Insight Agent Version**...

Choose the Agent OS



Windows and Linux agents are available for use. For this evaluation guide, we will choose the Windows agent MSI file.

Select Windows MSI (32-bit/64-bit)

Once selected, the agent binaries will download to your local Operating System.

Accept the EULA



Launch the agent installation on one or more client and server machines that have been chosen for the evaluation.

The initial setup screen is the End User License Agreement. Check the box to accept the EULA and **click Next**.

(Note: The agent files can be mass deployed using common enterprise software distribution products.)

Configure Log Event Destination

| 🕼 VMware vRealize Log Insight Agent Setup — | | × |
|---|----|------|
| Server Configuration | | |
| Please provide Log Insight server details | | |
| Please provide Log Insight server host name or IP address to send collected events to. Host: IP or FQDN | | |
| 2 | | |
| Back | Ca | ncel |

- 1. Enter the **IP or FQDN of your Log Insight server**.
- 2. Click Install.

Finish Agent Installation

| Management | Agents | |
|----------------|--------------------|--------------|
| System Monitor | All Agents | - C' Refresh |
| Cluster | | - |
| Access Control | 4 Agents (2) | 2 |
| Hosts | IP Address ≜ Hostn | ame 🄶 Ver |
| Agents U | | |

Once the install is complete, Click **Finish**.

1. Click Agents (if necessary). Your new agents should be visible a few minutes after installation.

2. Click **Refresh** if you are not seeing new agents listed.

Agents Management System Monitor All Agents C Refresh Cluster Type to filter Access Control Microsoft - IIS (Microsoft - IIS) Hosts Microsoft - Exchange 2010 (Microsoft - Exchange) Agents Microsoft - Exchange 2013 (Microsoft - Exchange) Event Forwarding Microsoft - Active Directory 2008 (Microsoft - Active Directory) License Microsoft - Active Directory 2012 (Microsoft - Active Directory) Integration Microsoft - .NET CLR (Microsoft - .NET CLR) vSphere i G Microsoft - Windows (Microsoft - Windows) vRealize Operations vSphere 5.x - vCenter (Linux) (VMware - vSphere) Configuration vSphere 5.x - vCenter (Linux) SSO (VMware - vSphere) General vSphere 5.x - vCenter (Windows) (VMware - vSphere) Time P New Group

Create a New Group

Groups allow you to configure one or many agents centrally from the Log Insight server. The group configuration is added to the liagent-effective.ini file on the client machine in the agent directory. Group agent configurations typically add a specific log file path and file extension or in the case of Windows, the event log and associated event channel. Changes can be made locally on the client. However, if a difference is encountered between server and client-side settings, the server-side configurations settings will replace the local client configuration settings.

- 1. Select the All Agents dropdown.
- 2. Scroll down and select **Microsoft Windows**.
- 3. Click New Group

Copy the Group Template



Click Copy Template.

Name the Group

| Copy Age | nt Group |
|----------|---|
| Name: | Microsoft - Windows |
| Notes: | $\mathbf{B} I \underline{\mathbf{U}} \mathscr{P}$ |
| | This is the agent group configuration for Microsoft - Windows content pack. You can find this under Administration -> Management -> Agents -> All Agents drop down. To apply,copy this template to active groups , add filters and save. |
| | Cancel Copy |

- 1. Name the Group
- 2. Click Copy

Create the Group Filter

| Agents | | | | |
|---|---------------|---------------|----------|-------------------|
| Microsoft - Windows (Not Saved) | - C' Ref | resh | | |
| Use filters to select agents receive the Ag | ent Configura | ation below. | 2 | |
| X OS • mat | ches | * Microsoft | Windows* | × |
| 1 to IP Address Hostname | | | | |
| IP / Version | ÷ | Version | ÷ | OS |
| 10. ✓ OS | al 🔘 | 3.0.0.2985111 | | Mic Sei Dai |

1. Click the filter field drop down and select **OS**.

2. Type Microsoft Windows*

This will result in a filter rule which matches any agent running on a client OS starting with Microsoft Windows.

Save the Group

```
Agent Configuration @
See the Online Help for Default agent configuration and other examples.
     [winlog|Application]
channel=Application
   1
   2
   З
     [winlog|Security]
channel=Security
   4
   5
   6
  7 [winlog|System]
8 channel=System
   9
  10 [winlog|WindowsFirewall]
  11 channel=Microsoft-Windows-Windows Firewall With Advanced Security/Firewall
  12
  13 [winlog|UAC]
  14 channel=Microsoft-Windows-UAC/Operational
  15
  Save New Group
```

Click Save New Group.

The agent will now collect events from the Application, Security, System, Windows Firewall, and UAC channels on the Windows operating system.

How to Use Log Insight

Log Insight User Interface

There are two primary interfaces for log monitoring and analysis in Log Insight.

- Dashboards: Dashboards are visual representations of the log data ingested by Log Insight. Dashboards are included with Content Packs or can be created and shared. Each dashboard has one or more widgets. Widgets are based upon pre-built or user created queries and include charts to visualize the log data. Query list widgets can also be created to quickly run a list of queries to determine if there are results in the log data.
- Interactive Analytics: This view allows you to examine log messages, identify problem areas, and perform root cause analysis.
Dashboards

| vm Log Insight | | | | |
|--|--|--|--|--|
| Custom Dashboards ^V My Dashboards Dashboard 1 | | | | |
| Shared Dashboards Content Pack Dashboards General VMware - VSAN | | | | |
| > VMware - vRops 6.7 > VMware - vSphere | | | | |

The view in the example shows the vSphere, General Content, vSAN, vROPs Content Packs, all of which are pre-installed within Log Insight. Each dashboard included in a Content Pack shows a different set of charts highlighting information and problem areas within the log data ingested from the source.

- 1. Click My Dashboards.
- 2. The Select **Dashboard 1**.

My Dashboards

| vm Log Insight | Dashboards | Interactive Analytics |
|---|--|-------------------------------------|
| Custom Dashboards > My Dashboards Dashboard 1 > Shared Dashboards Content Pack Dashboards > General > VMware - VSAN > VMware - vRops 6.7 > VMware - vSphere | Latest 5 minute Display legend + ADD FILTER Total Even 400 200 0 | es of data v c on all widgets () |
| + NEW DASHBOARD | | |

My Dashboards includes dashboards that have been created by cloning existing dashboards or created from within Interactive Analytics. In this example, the dashboard includes widgets created from queries in Interactive Analytics and cloned from the vSphere Content Pack.

Click New Dashboard.

New Dashboard

New Dashboard

| Name | My vSphere Dashboard | |
|------|----------------------|--|
| | | |

Share this dashboard among all users



- 1. Name the dashboard.
- 2. Click Save

(**Note:** You can also share this dashboard, if you are a Log Insight administrator, by selecting the **Share this dashboard among all users** checkbox.

View the New Dashboard

| vm Log Insight | Dashboards | Interactive Analytics |
|--|-----------------------------------|---|
| Custom Dashboards ^V My Dashboards Dashboard 1 | Latest 5 minute Display legend | es of data V C' on all widgets ① |
| My vSphere Dashboard | | |
| > Shared Dashboards | | No widgets in this dashboard |
| > General | | create a new one in Interactive Analytics by using the Add to Dashboard button. |
| > VMware - VSAN | | |
| > VMware - vRops 6.7 | | |
| > VMware - vSphere | | |

The new dashboard is blank. Widgets will be added as we move through the evaluation.

Select the vSphere Content Pack

| vm Log Insight |
|---|
| Custom Dashboards |
| [∼] My Dashboards |
| Dashboard 1 |
| My vSphere Dashboard |
| Shared Dashboards Content Pack Dashboards |
| > General |
| > VMware - VSAN |
| > VMware - vRops 6.7 |
| > VMware - vSphere |
| |

1. Select the VMware - vSphere Content Pack Dashboard.

The vSphere Content Pack

| ✓VMware - vSphere |
|-----------------------------------|
| General - Overview |
| General - Problems |
| General - Performance |
| General - Licensing |
| General - Inventory |
| Security - Auditing |
| Security - Authentication |
| vCenter Server - Overview |
| vCenter Server - Events |
| vCenter Server - Tasks |
| vCenter Server - Alarms |
| vCenter Server - Reconfigurations |
| vCenter Server - Performance |
| vSphere - Overview |
| vSphere - DRS |
| vSphere - HA |
| vSphere - vMotion |
| vSphere - Network |
| vSphere - Replication |
| Storage - Overview |
| Storage - SCSI Latency / Errors |
| Storage - SCSI Sense Codes |
| Storage - VSAN / VVOL |
| Storage - NFS |
| Virtual Machine - Overview |
| Virtual Machine - Snapshots |

The vSphere Content Pack includes different dashboards that provide details on log data pertaining to different types of events. The dashboards focus on high level overview information through specific events such as DRS/HA, vMotion, Security, and Performance. The Content Pack aggregates and displays correlated log data from across a vSphere environment. This capability allows you to quickly view where trouble areas are in the environment then view the logs to find possible correlations, establish root cause, and resolve the problem.

vSphere Content Pack dashboard summary:

General - Overview - All vSphere events. vSphere warning and error events.

General - Problems - ESXi events, vSphere events by type, hardware events, alarms, DRS and HA events

General - Performance - vCenter performance issues SOAP and Database, VMotion performance, vSphere performance events SCSI latency, VMFS reservations, VM tasks.

General - Security - Failed login attempts to vCenter and ESX, vCenter and ESX authentication events, service enabled events, ESX shell commands

General - Auditing - Audit events by type, ESX firewall changes, Snapshot events, VM events

General - Licensing - vCenter and ESX power on events, vMotion events, Hosts, datacenters, clusters

General - Inventory - Number of vCenter servers, datacenters, clusters, Hosts, datastores, portgroups, VMs, VMs created and deleted

vCenter Server - Events - vCenter events and error events over time, VM events by user, and vCenter system events.

vCenter Server - Tasks - vCenter tasks over time, by type, by user, by VM. ESX tasks.

vCenter Server - Alarms - vCenter server alarms over time, by type, by alarm source.

vCenter Server - Application - VPXD events. SSO events, vSphere client events, CPU utilization by vCenter Server, number of session by username and IP.

vSphere - Overview - VMKwarning events, DRS events, VMkernel events, VMWare HA events, vFlash Read Cache events.

vSphere - ESXi - VOB events, VMkernel events, esxupdate events, ESX events by appname and severity, VMODL events.

vSphere - DRS/HA - DRS executed VMotion events, DRS imbalance by cluster and vCenter, HA failovers, HA heartbeat problems.

vSphere - vMotion - VMotion events, VMotion bandwidth average.

vSphere - Network/Firewall - ESX network events, DVS events, NSX events.

Storage - Overview - VMFS reservation times, storage queries, VMFS heartbeat events.

Storage - SCSI Latency/Errors - Average SCSI latency, SCSI errors by device, hostname, path.

Storage - SCSI Sense Codes - Host-side, device-side, and plugin-side error codes, errors by device and sense data.

Storage - VSAN/VVOL - VSAN events over time, VVOL events over time.

Storage - NFS - NFS events over time, problem events by NFS server, by status, by datastore.

Virtual Machine - Overview - VM events by name, by VM, by type. VM state events.

Virtual Machine - Snapshots - Snapshot errors by event type, by VM and operation.

vSphere Content Pack Dashboards

| vm Log Insight | Dashboards | Interactive Analytics | 💄 admin \equiv |
|--|---|--|---------------------------------------|
| Custom Dashboards My Dashboards Shared Dashboards Content Pack Dashboards Content Pack Dashboards | Latest 5 minutes of d Display legend on all source hostname + ADD FILTER | deta C C I widgets C Contains Use TAB or ENTER to separate multiple terms Contains Use TAB or ENTER to separate multiple terms Use TAB or ENTER to separate multiple terms | |
| VMware - VSAN VMware - VSAN VMware - vSphere General - Overview General - Problems General - Lersning | All vSphere e | All vSphere events by hostname | 617 eng vmw sc2-hs2-b1619 eng vmw |
| General - Inventory Security - Auditing Security - Authentication vCenter Server - Overview vCenter Server - Overview vCenter Server - Tasks vCenter Server - Tasks vCenter Server - Reconfigurations | vSphere error 22 6 0 1453 | v events 2.4 Count of events Unque count of hos 1.2 1.4/54 14/55 14/56 14/57 0 VSphere error events by cluster No results 14/54 14/55 14/56 14/57 | 14 ¹ 56 14 ¹ 57 |
| vCenter Server - Performance vSphere - Overvlew vSphere - DRS vSphere - HA vSphere - Motion vSphere - Network vSphere - Replication Storage - Overvlew Storage - SCSI Latency / Errors Storage - SCSI Sense Codes Storage - SCSI Sense Codes | vSphere warr 8 4 0 14 ¹ 53 Relevant vSph Type to filter vSphere warms events by | ning events 2.4 Count of results 2.4 Count of resul | 14'56 14'57 |
| Storage - NFS Virtual Machine - Overview Virtual Machine - Snapshots | vSphere error events by ho | astrano | |

Select the General - Overview Dashboard.

Dashboard Time Range

| vm Log Insight | Dashboards Interactive Analytics |
|-------------------------|--|
| Custom Dashboards | Latest 5 minutes of data V |
| > My Dashboards | Latest 5 minutes of data |
| > Shared Dashboards | Latest hour of data |
| Content Pack Dashboards | Latest 24 hours of data |
| General | Latest 48 hours of data Custom time range |
| > VMware - VSAN | 800 |

Dashboard data is partly displayed based on the selected time range. You can select a predefined time range or a **Custom time range**. To use a **Custom time range**, specify a time and date or use **normal language** such as **last 48 hours, last week, or last month**. Only log data with time stamps that are within the time range will be displayed on the dashboards.

1. Click the dropdown menu then choose Latest 24 hours of data.

Dashboard Filter

| Latest 24 hours of data | C C | |
|---------------------------------|--------------------|------------------|
| Display legend on all widgets ① | | |
| source | contains v | Use TAB or ENTER |
| hostname | contains \lor | (host ×) |
| + ADD FILTER × CLEAR ALL FIL | contains | |
| | does not contain | |
| All vSphere events | starts with | |
| | does not start wit | h |
| | matches regex | |
| 30k | exists | |
| | de co pot ovist | |
| | does not exist | |
| 0 18:00 A; | or 18 06:00 | 12:00 |

Log Insight allows you to filter the presented view with Dashboard Filters. The default fields are source and hostname. You can create a filter based on any field that has been added by a content pack or manually extracted. In the example, we have listed the name of an ESXi Host within the hostname field. Once the filter is added, the dashboard only shows data from that Host and any related information.

1. To create a filter for a specific Host, enter the name of an ESXi Host that is forwarding logs to Log Insight, from the evaluation environment, within the hostname field. Log Insight will autocomplete the field based on matches from the log data.

2. Select the dropdown to choose from a number of operators and change how the filter matches data. The default operator is **contains**.

3. Click **Update** after you have created the desired filter.



Filtered Dashboard Data

The widget data now only shows visualized log data which contains the word Host in the hostname field.

1. Notice that related parent cluster information is also presented. Log Insight presents log data for related objects where relevant in Dashboards or Interactive Analytics. The ability to show related objects can also be controlled via filters and aggregation functions within Dashboards and Interactive Analytics.

- 2. Click **Clear All Filters**.
- 3. Click Update.

| | 2018-04-17 20:00:00.000 to 2018-04-17 20:59:59.999 vmw_cluster | west-comp mgmt-mgmt mgmt-core |
|----------------|---|--|
| | east-comp 157,880 west-mgmt 8,058 west-comp 7,575 | |
| vSpher 300k | east-mgmt 7,558 mgmt-mgmt 428 demo-ops 370 mgmt-core 360 lab-auto 280 lab-ops 72 | east-comp west-mgmt |
| 200k | | east-mgmt |
| 100k | Add Value as Filter Interactive Analytics | mgmt-core mgmt-mgmt demo-ops lab-auto |
| 0 | 18:00 This Dashboard Other Dashboard | Tab-ops |

Widget Options

Choose a widget you would like to add to the newly created My vSphere Dashboard. For this example we have chosen the vSphere error events by cluster widget. This widget groups error events by cluster objects.

1. Hovering over the chart you can see a window appears with further information about the data in the chart. In this case a color-coded reference to the number of error events over a week period for each cluster. The legend on the right shows the cluster and associated color.

2. Click anywhere within the chart data to open the Add Value as Filter menu. You can add a filter based on where you have clicked on the chart. For example, if we click on the green portion of the chart in this example, and select This Dashboard, the filter vmw_cluster contains east-comp will be added to the dashboard filter above. Additionally you can click Interactive Analytics to open into that interface with query and filter information added for you. Finally, widgets can link to other widgets. Clicking Other Dashboard, also known as dashboard linking, brings up a list of dashboards to further refine how a set of logs are viewed.

A good example of **dashboard linking** is the **All vSphere events by hostname widget in the vSphere Content Pack General - Overview dashboard**. Selecting Other Dashboard on that widget will bring up a list of dashboards containing specific info or problem areas in the Content Pack for a selected Host.

3. Hover over the magnifying glass with your mouse. Selecting this icon transitions to Interactive Analytics with widget query and filters added for you. This option differs from the **Add Value as Filter** menu by using the overall widget query.

4. Click the *i* to learn about a widget, including important configuration information and how to interpret the widget data.

5. Click the **Gear** and select **Clone**.

Clone a Widget

Clone to Dashboard



1. Name your widget or use the default name.

2. Choose the **dashboard you previously created** - in this example **My vSphere Dashboards**.

The widget's original notes will be added to the cloned widget. You can also add your own notes, including links to external websites. Adding notes helps other Log Insight users understand the context or intended purpose of the widget data.

3. Click **Clone**.

4. Choose **two additional widgets** and clone them to your My vSphere Dashboard

To clone an entire dashboard, hover your mouse cursor over the dashboard name on the left side of the interface, a gear will appear. Click the gear and select Clone. The entire dashboard will be cloned to My Dashboards as a new dashboard.

(**Note:** You cannot modify Content Pack Dashboards or widgets unless they are cloned to a user created dashboard in My Dashboards.)

Navigate to My Dashboards



- 1. Select the Custom Dashboards
- 2. Click My Dashboards

View and Modify a Dashboard

| vm Log Insight | Dashboards | Interactive Analytics |
|---|-----------------------------------|-------------------------------------|
| Custom Dashboards [✓] My Dashboards Status | Latest 24 hours of | data 🗸 C |
| vCenter Activity Operations Snapshots | vSphere wa 300k 200k | east-comp west-mgmt east-mgmt |
| My vSphere Dashboards | 100k | mgmt-mgmt demo-ops mgmt-core |
| > Shared Dashboards Content Pack Dashboards | 0 18:00 | Apr 18 06:00 12:00 |

Notice your dashboard now contains a widget.

1. We have the **option to Clone, rename and delete the dashboard**.

| | My vSphere Dashboards | * * | 100k |
|----|--|------------------------|-------------------|
| a. | Shared Dashboards Content Pack Dashboards Apache - CLF | Clone Rena Delet | e 1 me 1 te |

2. To rename a widget, click the name and begin typing a new name.



3. Move the widget by hovering the mouse cursor over the widget top bar, to the right of the name, click and hold the mouse button on the bar and drag the widget to the desired location. Release the mouse button when the widget move is complete. To expand a widget, and use the entire space, hover the mouse cursor over the right-side of the widget and click the arrow. The widget will expand to fill the empty space.



Problems Dashboard



Select the vSphere Content Pack **General - Problems** dashboard.

| vm Log Insight | | | | | 🛓 admin 🗮 | | |
|---|--|------------------------------------|---|---|--|--|--|
| Microsoft - IIS Microsoft - SQL Server Microsoft - Windows MongoD8 - Detabase | Later 14 hours of data v c scote catalian v bit 100 to 100 t | | | | | | |
| ³ NetAps - Data ONTAP ³ Nginx ³ Palo Ato Networks - PAIN-OS ³ VMiware - NSX-VSphere ³ VMiware - SIM ³ VMiware - VSAN | ESX levents by hostname 14 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 | | | | | | |
| VMware - vRa 7 VMware - vRops 5.x VMware - vSphere General - Deeview General - Problems General - Performance General - Licensing General - Licensing | vSphere prob | Here events by type | vSphere connectivity lost by component | | Physical hardware event detected | | |
| Security - Auditing Security - Auditing Security - Authentication vCenter Server - Devents vCenter Server - Events vCenter Server - Takan vCenter Server - Alarms vCenter Server - Deconfigurations | Configuration | problems by hostname No results | Average ESXI SCSI later | ncy >Is over time by device | ESXI NFS problem events by status | | |
| v.amer server - Parformance Valphre - DRS Valphre - DRS Valphre - HA Valphre - HA Valphre - Hetwork Valphre - Replication Storage - Overview Storage - Scil Latency / Errors | Relevant vSphere problem queries © • Critical VShe Totan Iter Stati Memory Anno Apadeté A paresata hy hansman and P Stati Memory Anno Apadeté A | | p detected /record to the staff /record to the staff Down (MYC) source with the staff source of the staff source of the staff source of the staff source of the staff | ESXI storage alarm queries Types have 1963 (Brangs Log searches cardina tax 1963) (Brangs LOg searches cardina 1963) (Brangs LOg searches cardina 1963) (Brangs LOg and add 1963) (Brangs LOg and add 1964) (Brangs LOg and add 1964) (Brangs LOg and add 1964) (Brangs LOg and add 1964) (Brangs LOg add add add add add add add add add ad | ESXi other alarm queries Viran time Exit & G A meeters and in a cappoint Control Server(195), curate to associate Site(1), Kin, the true sectore Site(1), | | |

vSphere Problem Dashboard

1. Hover your mouse over any of the charts in the dashboard to view the different types of data that are highlighted.

2. Click one of the colors on the legend. Notice that color is now removed from the chart. Each color indicates a different problem event.

3. The run all queries button provides the ability to run a series of queries against the log data. This is known as a query list widget. Typically these queries are used to find problems within the log data. Choose a widget and click the green run button.

(**Note:** You may need to scroll down and try other widgets or increase your time range to find problems.)

Problem Queries

| Relevant vSphere problem queries | ⊙ i ‡ |
|---|-------------|
| Type to filter | |
| [ESX/ESXi] Network: Duplicate IP addresses by hostname and IP | No Results |
| [ESX/ESXi] Network: vmnic events by name and problem | Has Results |
| [ESX/ESXi] Storage: Datastore events by name and problem | Has Results |
| [ESX/ESXi] Storage: iSCSI events by server and problem | No Results |
| [ESX/ESXi] Storage: NFS events by server and problem | Has Results |
| [ESX/ESXi] Configuration limit reached | No Results |
| [ESX/ESXi] Invalid/Unsupported events by hostname | No Results |

The query list may run for several minutes depending on the size of your environment and time range. If issues are found in the log data, **Has Results** will be listed.

1. Hover over **Has Results** an **i** will appear. Click the **i** to view notes and a description of the issue the query has found. Once you are done, click **Has Results**.

(**Note:** if you were unable to find any results, click Interactive Analytics on the top bar. In the next step, you will not see the query filter information in the example. Skip #2.)

Dashboards 2 2015-12-07 00:00:00 to 2016-01-07 10:02:14 (1 m ant of events - + grouped by vmv_esxi_problem_dataste Reset Custom time range * Q * exists vmw_esxi_problem × vmw_esxi_problem_datasto + Add Filter X Clear All Filters 2015-12-07 00:00:00.000 to 2016-01-07 10:02:1 1 to 22 out of 22 events View - Sort: Newest First -Events Field Table Event Types Event Trends 2015-12-15 2015-12-15121:59:13.8052 w2-mgntpm-6.mgmt.local vobd: [scsiCorrelator] 75811547Jus: [esx.problem.storage.connectivity.lost] Lost connectivity to storage device naa.60060160b7402d007f312ccf7567e411. Path 1558:14.301 vmba1:05:10:191 is down.Affected datastores: "vmc3j_east_1000_fc_91_rg". source event[bype vmw_dubter vmw_dbtachter vmw_venter vmw_venter_id vmw_venter_id vmw_venter_id vmw_veb_component vmw_esi_connectivity_component vmw_esi_problem vmw_veb_event_bype vmw_esi_devko_id vmw_esi_path_id vmw_esi_problem_datastores 2015-12-15 2015-12-15121:59:11.2152 w2-mgmtpm-6.mgmt.local vobd: [scsiCorrelator] 75554534Jus: [ex.problem.scsi.device.state.permanentloss.noopens] Permanently inaccessible device: naa.60060160b7402d0083bd5166b316e511 has no more opens. It is now safe to unmount datastores (if any): "vns53_all_2000_cfer_fc_0" and delete the device source event/hype vmw_cdataster vmw_object_id vmw_vcenter vmw_vops_id hostname appname vmw_vob_component vmw_esi_problem vmw_vob_event_hype vmw_esi_problem vmw_esi_problem vmw_vsb_event_hype vmw_esi_device_id vmw_vcenter vmw_vcenter_id vmw_vcenter vmw_ops_id hostname appname vmw_vob_component vmw_esi_problem vmw_esi_pro

Datastore Events in Interactive Analytics

1. We are transitioned to Interactive Analytics with the query filter information and time range already configured.

2. Click the **Interactive Analytics button** at the top of the interface. This will reset the overview chart and query to default.

Interactive Analytics



1. The top of the interactive analytics page displays a visual representation of log data called the overview chart. The overview chart visualizations are based on the chart type, query, and chosen aggregation functions.

2. The search box and query builder help users quickly filter and locate relevant log information. In the previous step we saw that if a user transitions from a widget in the dashboard view, query criteria is automatically entered.

3. The bottom view shows individual log events.

4. Shows fields that are present in the log messages for the specified time range. Fields are regular expressions that are applied to the text of a message. Log Insight extracts a subset of the log data so we can treat that data like a column in a database. This allows unstructured log data to be queried in a similar way to how a database would be queried. The fields pane shows fields which are currently displayed in Events. Fields can be static that are added to the index or manually extracted. These fields could be data extracted or added via agent parsers, Content Pack fields, syslog fields, or manually extracted fields. When you click a field, a mini-chart is displayed in the field pane. Clicking anywhere within the mini-chart loads it into the overview chart at the top and adds a filter specific to that field.

Events



Ingested log events are displayed within Interactive Analytics. By default all log events are presented when no filters are added.

1. Each log message is timestamped on arrival to the Log Insight server.

2. Log messages have associated fields to make queries faster and more efficient. Hostname and appname are examples of Syslog RFC compliant fields.

3. Fields are also added by Content Packs and product integrations. vmw_datacenter, vmw_object_id, and vmw_vcenter are all examples of fields added by VMware integrations. You can create queries based on these fields to help find specific log messages.

(**Note:** Hover your mouse cursor over the fields shown in blue to learn more information about that field. For example, hovering over certain fields will provide further details such as parent or child relationships for a hostname.

Build a Query

| | 45 10.54.00 10.54.15 10.54.30 |
|--|--|
| Constituents & numbers - Anno - Basel | there Searce |
| | T bat = 5 secon |
| erro | Latest 5 minutes of data |
| eror 900, 692 | + 1-07 10:50:14.832 to 2016-01-07 10:55:14.831 |
| retrois 2,442 ferror_file_not_found 244 | + 0,348 events View - Sort: Newest First - Field |
| erro* erro? | hanged [] (+ a) |
| 2016-01-07 2016-01-07716:55:14.7812 w2-memtom-14.memt.local Voxa: verbose voxa[74926870] [Originator@8876.sub=YoxaHalCnxHostagent oolD=WFU=161791da] [VoxaHalCnxHostagent::ProcessUpdate] Applying | updates from 1660850 to 1660851 (at |

Log Insight allows you to use plain English words when searching for log messages. You can also build queries using regular expression.

Type **error** in the search box. Notice Log Insight will present an autocomplete list based on what you have typed.

Choose a Time Range



- 1. Click the time range drop down menu
- 2. Select the Latest 24 hours of data.

(**Note:** The time range menu in Interactive Analytics serves the same function as what was shown in the dashboards portion of this guide. Only log events with time stamps that are within the time range will be displayed. The timezone of the client web browser determines the log messages that are visible.)



Number of Events

The event list will update showing the last 24 hours of log messages. The word error will be highlighted in each event message to indicate a match. Only log messages including the word **error** will be displayed.

1. The number of pages and events is shown. The word error occurs in many log messages, which is the primary reason we chose the word. Log Insight has found over 2.4 million log events with the word error over the past 24 hours. Log Insight uses numerous methods to help you decrease the number of log events that are displayed. We will cover those methods in the following steps.

Add Filters



Filters function in the same way as filters with dashboards. Log message results are based on matched values and operators in the filter.

1. Operators control filtering behavior in the same manner as with dashboards. Fields with numeric values, for example latency numbers, include additional operators such as <, >, or =.

2. When two or more filters are created, you are presented with the option to **match all or match any** values in the filters.

3. Click Add Filter.

Match all - of the following filters: 1 Use TAB or ENTER to separate multiple terms x text Ŧ does not contain Ŧ × hostname + Use TAB or ENTER to separate multiple terms contains × text does not contain * Use TAB or ENTER to separate multiple terms 2 🗕 A √ text Even appname ror 'Hostsvc.VFlashMar 2 build_number 16: vmw_vcenter vmw_vcen channel ror 'Hostsvc.VFlashMar 2 class 16 vmw vcenter vmw vcen cluster_guid 2 ror 'Hostsvc.VFlashMa event_type 16 vmw_vcenter vmw_vcen eventid ror 'Hostsvc.VFlashMar 2 eventrecardid

Choosing a Field

1. New filters default to the **text** field. You can choose a new field by selecting the down arrow and scrolling to the desired field.

2. Alternatively you can type the filter into the search box. Log Insight will match results against what you have typed.

Globbing

| fail | * erro? | | | | | 🚖 🔹 Latest 7 days of data 📼 📿 | ł |
|------------|------------------------|---|--|------------------------------|---------------------------|--|---|
| Mat | ch all 🕶 of th | e following filters: | | | | | 3 |
| × | text | - | does not contain | - 1 | 7.0.0.1 | × | |
| × | text | | contains | - e | x-03a | < esx-01 | |
| + A | dd Filter | 🗙 Clear All Filters | | es | (-01a (-01b | 2 1,977, 869 | ,241+ ,932+ |
| Eve | nts Fiel | d Table Event Type | es Event Trends | | | 1 to 50 out of 2,008 events View - Sort: Newest First - | Fie |
| 2 07 | 015-11-10 40:38.749 | 2015-11-10T15:39 <io_obj p:0x2dcc<br="">source event_type</io_obj> | 9:46.653Z <mark>esx-03a</mark> 89e8, h:47, <tcp vmw_cluster vm</tcp | .corp.] '0.0.0 w_datac | ocal H .0:0'> enter | ostd: [FFBF7870 <mark>error</mark> 'SoapAdapter.HTTPService.HttpConnection'] <mark>Failed</mark> to read header on stream , <tcp '0.0.0.0:0'="">>: N7Vmacore15SystemExceptionE(Connection reset by peer) vmw_object_id vmw_vcenter vmw_vcenter_id vmw_vr_ops_id hostname appname vmw_esxi_seventy</tcp> | + |
| 2 07 | 015-11-10 35:38.729 | 2015-11-10T15:34 <io_obj p:0x2dd9<br="">source event_type</io_obj> | 1:46.644Z <mark>esx-03a</mark> Daf60, h:50, <tcp vmw_cluster vm</tcp | .corp.l '0.0.0 | ocal H .0:0'> enter | ostd: [2DA81870 <mark>erron</mark> 'SoapAdapter.HTTPService.HttpConnection'] <mark>Failed</mark> to read header on stream , <tcp '0.0.0.0:0'="">>: NTVmacore15SystemExceptionE(Connection reset by peer) vmw_object_id vmw_vcenter vmw_vcenter_id vmw_vr_ops_id hostname appname vmw_esxi_sevently</tcp> | + \ + \ + \ |

Log Insight supports using globs in queries.

1. The * supports matching multiple characters. The ? only matches one character. In the example, using fail* could return Failed, failure, or failing. Erro? will probably always return the word error.

When entering a value, Log Insight will perform a match against what you have typed. Also multiple values for a single filter line will automatically have an OR constraint. The filter above will translate to **text contains esx-03a OR esx-01a** when complete.

3. Try **creating a filter for an ESXi Host in your environment** then click the search button.

(**Note:** Search queries will not work properly if globs are the first character in a word, i.e. *rror. Multiple globs **can** be used such as e^*r^* .)

Aggregation Functions



We can also control the data which drives the Overview Chart in Log Insight via aggregation functions. Above the search box, the default aggregation function Count of events over time is presented. Selecting the down arrow will open a drop down menu with additional functions.

1. Click the **+ plus sign**.

Adding a Second Function



Multiple functions can be added to a chart. This allows you to show a single event in two different ways.

- 1. Click the down arrow to open the drop down menu.
- 2. Click the radio button for **Unique count of** and select **hostname**.
- 3. Click **Apply**.

Multi-function Overview Chart



The Overview Chart will update and include the Unique count of hostname in the view as a line.

1. Hover over the column and line. Notice that each will present information. The column will present the count of events for that time frame. The line shows the number of hostnames that had matching error logs during that time frame.

2. Click over time.



Overview Chart with Hostname Grouping

Next we will group the results by hostname.

- 1. Select the **hostname checkbox**.
- 2. Click Apply.

Overview Chart With Grouped Hostname



1. Now that events are grouped by hostname, **hover the mouse cursor over the different colors in the columns** on the chart. Information will appear showing the time range and count events for that hostname.

- 2. The legend on the right shows the color and associated hostname.
- 3. Click Chart Type.

Chart Options



Different charts are also available. By default, Log Insight will automatically select the best chart for the data set. You can manually choose charts to visualize the data in different ways.

1. Choose the **Area chart**.

(**Note:** Some charts like the Bar or Pie chart will be grayed out unless nontime series data is selected. You can change to non-time series data in the group by drop down menu. **Hint** this is where we selected the over time grouped by hostname setting.)

Snapshot the Query

| | 1 Snapshot 🖬 Add to Dashboard |
|--|--|
| 10:00 12:00 | 1.5 Count of events W2-mgmtpm-15.mgmt.local W2-mgmtpm-14.mgmt.local W2-mgmtpm-3.mgmt.local W2-mgmtpm-1 W2-mgmtpm-11.mgmt.local W2-mgmtpm-11.mgmt.local W2-mgmtpm-11.mgmt.local |
| | 1 line = 1 hour - Chart Type 🖬 Area - |
| Latest 24 hou III Automatic III Column -11 12:49:57 | ■ Logarithmic axis ☑ Show legend Stacking: ○ Normal ● Percent ● None |
| of 50+ events Area | est- Fields 🖉 🛛 🕨 |
| ➡ Bar ● Pie ♣ Bubble | appname channel event_type eventid |

Notice the view changes to an area chart. Experiment with the different charts possibilities before moving forward.

1. Click **Snapshot** once you have finished looking at chart options.

Snapshot Options



As a user is working with a query, they may want to add a field or tweak the query a bit, which could change the visualization. Snapshots allow a user to go back and compare these visualizations side by side. You can take a snapshot of your current query and time range in vRealize Log Insight for quick viewing or to save to a dashboard. Think of snapshots as a visual favorite query. The goal of snapshots is to assist with Root cause analysis and troubleshooting, they are saved between logons, but they are unique to each user account.

Snapshots appear on the bar at the bottom of Interactive Analytics.

- 1. Locate your snapshot.
- 2. Click the **date and time text** along the bottom of your

snapshot. Rename the snapshot to something which conveys meaning for the content. For example, you could name the snapshot **Count of Error** events grouped by hostname.

3. Click the gear on the left and select **Save All to Dashboard**.

Add to Dashboard



For this step we will add the snapshot to the existing dashboard created earlier.

1. Click the Dashboard drop down.

2. Select **My vSphere Dashboard** (or the name of the dashboard you created.)

3. Click Add.

Additional Add to Dashboard Option



Your snapshot has now been added to the dashboard. This functionality allows you to add all current snapshots to an existing or new dashboard.

You can also add the current overview chart to an existing or new dashboard by clicking **Add to Dashboard** on the upper right of Interactive Analytics. This can be accomplished without creating a snapshot.

Events Types

| error | 🚖 🔹 Latest 24 hours of data 🔹 🔍 |
|---------|--|
| + Add F | iller 1) 2016-01-11 12:14:34.179 to 2016-01-12 12:143 |
| Events | Field Table Event Types Event Trends View - Sort: Most Common First - |
| 2.3 | 816-01-12118:13:40.0422+ w2-mgmtpm-16.mgmt.local+ Hostd: warning hostd[35C07870+] [Originator@6876 sub=WMkernelStatsProvider(915468448+).VSIStatsImpl] Failed to get vsi stat set: Sysinfo error on operation returned status : ot found. Please see the WMkernel log for detailed error information |
| 3 | 2.307.221 events of this type (Expand) |
| 147 | k 016-01-12118:14:21.4892+ w2-mgmtpm-13.mgmt.local+ sdrsinjector+: Skipping device naa.50000160b600003450000160b6000034- either due to VSI read error or abnormal state |
| | 147.268 events of this to Expand 4 |
| 106 | 2016-01-12118:12:50.0492+ w2-mgmtpm-12.mgmt.local+ Vpxa: error vpxa[56AC6870+] [Originator06876 sub=hostdstats op10=37594335-36+] [VpxaHalStatsHostagent::GetDvxStats] Did not get any entity metrics from the host. |
| | 100.101 events of this type (Expand) |
| 71.6 | K 2016-01-12118:13:262+ w2-mgmtpm-4.mgmt.local+ sfcb-CHX04_Processor+[2917839+]: [module:pam_lsass]pam_sm_authenticate+: failed [error+ -code:48017+] |
| | 71.555 events of this type (Expand) |
| 23.8 | $_{ m K}$ The computer attempted to validate the credentials for an account. |
| | Authom Licition Package. MICOSOFT AUMIENTICATION PACKAGE VI 3 Lagon Account: Institutististantistateausististakasistista Sourcen Korkkation: MOH-WI-CASB2* Error Code: 8:00 |
| | |

1. Click the **Event Types** tab.

Aggregation Functions and Grouping help to change how much log data we can visualize. As we have seen though, queries will often return thousands to millions of log events in the events list. In these cases, even with filters in place, searching through every log message could present a challenge. Log Insight addresses this issue by intelligently grouping or clustering events into manageable groups. **Event Clustering** is a machine learning technology that groups the related data together. Log Insight detects the types of events, discovers the schema, and automatically understands the structure of each event. We then create **Smart Fields** and pattern match the same event types.

Event clustering allows potentially thousands of events to be grouped and summarized into a smaller set of results within the Event types tab. Event clustering happens at ingestion time to reduce query times and changes to Log Insight data visualizations.

2. In our example, Log Insight has grouped all of the **error** messages into 115 different event types.

3. The most common event types are shown first. The top event type group includes 2.3 million log messages.

4. Click **Expand** to view the log messages included in any group.
Smart Fields

| E | vents Field Tab | le Event Types | Event Trends | |
|---------|----------------------------|--|--|--|
| × ∻~ | 91k 2016-01 | -12T18:25:45.695Z | w2-mgmtpm-12.mgmt.localv1error | <pre>r vpxa[56A24B70*] [Originator@6876 sub=hostdstats opID=4894286e-cf*] [VpxaHalStatsHostagent::GetD</pre> |
| | 2016-01-12 | 2016-01-12T18:25: | 45.668Z w2-mgmtpm-14.mgmt.local Vpxa | : error vpxa[74A09B70] [Originator@6876 sub=hostdstats opID=4894286e-c8] [VpxaHalStatsHostagent::/ |
| | 12:25:45.681 | source event_type | hostname appname vmw_esxi_severity | / vmw_opid |
| | 2016-01-12 | 2016-01-12T18:25: | 45.668Z w2-mgmtpm-14.mgmt.local Vpxa | : error vpxa[74A09B70] [Originator@6876 sub=hostdstats opID=4894286e-c8] [VpxaHalStatsHostagent::(|
| | 12:25:45.680 | source event_type | hostname appname vmw_esxi_severity | / vmw_opid |
| | 2016-01-12 12:25:45.666 | 2016-01-12T18:25: source event_type | 45.695Z w2-mgmtpm-12.mgmt.local Vpxa hostname appname vmw_esxi_severity | : error vpxa[56A24870] [Originator@6876 sub=hostdstats opID=4894286e-cf] [VpxaHalStatsHostagent::// vmw_opid |
| | 2016-01-12 | 2016-01-12T18:25: | 45.656Z w2-mgmtpm-13.mgmt.local Vpxa | error vpxa[FFDF7A60] [Originator@6876 sub=hostdstats opID=4894286e-a9] [VpxaHalStatsHostagent: |
| | 12:25:45.664 | source event_type | hostname appname vmw_esxi_severity | Vmw_opu |
| | 2016-01-12 | 2016-01-12T18:25: | 45.662Z w2-mgmtpm-16.mgmt.local Vpxa | : error vpxa[5F216870] [Originator@6876 sub=hostdstats opID=4894286e=f4] [VpxaHalStatsHostagent::(|
| | 12:25:45.663 | source event_type | hostname appname vmw_esxi_severity | v vmv_opid |

The group is now expanded. There will be differences in the messages within each log. Although there are differences, intelligent grouping identifies various patterns to differentiate between a constant and a variable within each log message.

1. The variable text, also known as Smart Fields, are shown in blue. In this screenshot, the indicated smart field displays a host, one or more different hosts might be included in this log information and may be different for each log message in the grouping.

2. The text in black represents similar static components of a log message. That portion of a message includes pattern matched log messages, which helps determine how messages will be grouped.

Filter Event Types



1. Hover the mouse cursor over a group and **click the gear that appears** next to a group of event types.

2. Select Event Not Like This.

3. Choose another group of event types and select **Events Not Like This** again.

Using this process a Log Insight user can rapidly work through a large number of irrelevant logs to find the important information. This process is also particularly helpful when the user is not sure what to search for in the log data.

Event Types Filtered

| error | N, | | | | |
|-------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| X ever | nt_type • Is not • v4_etd5fde × v4_6bb677df ×) | | | | |
| 🕂 Add Fil | tter 💥 Clear All Filters | | | | |
| Events | Field Table Event Types Event Trends | | | | |
| 2 1k | 2016-01-12T18:25:45.6952+ w2-mgmtpm-12.mgmt.local+ Vpxa: error vpxa[56A24B70+] [Originator@6876 sub=hostdstats opID=4894286e-cf+] [VpxaHalStatsHostagent::GetDvsStats] | | | | |
| | 90.974 events of this type (Expand) | | | | |
| 61.2k | 2016-01-12118:25:27Z+ w2-mgmtpm-6.mgmt.local+ sfcb-C1M0ML-Processor+[2944246+]; [module:pam_lsms_sm_authenticate+: failed [error+ +code:40017+] | | | | |
| | 61,100 events of this type (Expand) | | | | |

1. Selecting **Events Not Like This** creates the new filter **event_type is not "event type"**. Had we selected **Events Like This** instead, the filter would have constrained the results only to that event type group

2. Click Events.

Events Filtered

| error | ☆ • | Latest 24 hours of data | • |
|--|---|--------------------------------|----------------------------|
| x event_type - is not - v4_e1d5/de v4_60b677df | | | |
| Add Hiter Clear All Hiters Fuents Field Table Event Trends | 2016-0 | 11-11 12:26:15.192 to | 2016-01-12 Sort: Newest |
| 6 2016-01-12 2016-01-12 10:26:03,275 ERROR [PopulationSymptom/SICacheRefresher] com.vmware.statsplatform.persistence.cache.ResourceCache.getResourceKeyFromDocld - getR 3 w vrce event/per Bepath homane vmw_duster vmw_datacenter vmw_host vmw_object_jd vmw_vcenter vmw_vcenter_jd vmw_vr_ops_appname vmw_vr_ops_dusternal | 2sourceKeyFromDocId: docId is me vmw_vr_ops_clusterrole vm | s null w_vr_ops_hostname vn | nw_vr_ops_id |

1. Moving back to the Events tab, we quickly see that, with a few simple clicks, most of the log messages are now filtered.

2. The filters have remained in place as we transitioned between tabs.

3. Hover the mouse cursor over a log message and click the **gear** next to a log message. This menu presents further methods to organize log messages.

Highlight and Colorize Events

| Add Filter: | |
|-------------------------|---------------------------|
| Events Like This | |
| Events Not Like This | |
| Highlight Events Like 1 | This |
| Colorize Event Types | |
| Set Time Range From | This Event |
| View Event In Context | |
| Open Analysis in vRea | lize Operations Manager O |

1. Note that you can also add event type filters from the Events Tab as well.

2. In addition to filters we can Highlight and Colorize each event type. **Highlight Events Like This** colorizes a single event type in the list. All events with the same event type will have the same color.

To colorize all messages in the list, click **Colorize Event Types.**

Colorized Events

| | 2016-01-12 12:26:03.475 | 2016-01-12 10-26-83.275 LRROR (Population/symptomlSiCacheferfersher] con.vmare.stataplatform.persistence.cache.getResourceda |
|---|----------------------------|--|
| * | 2016-01-12 12-26:03.475 | 2016-01-12 10:26:83,274 ERROR [PopulationSymptonTSICacheRefresher] con.vnware.statsplatform.persistence.cache.ResourceCache.getResourceCachee.getResourceCachee.getResourceCachee.getResourceCachee.getResourceCa |
| | 2016-01-12 12:26:03:475 | 2016-01-12 10:26:03,274 EBBOR [PopulationSymptonTSICacheRefresher] con.vmware.statsplatform.persistence.cache.ResourceCache.getResourceCache. |
| | 2016-01-12 12:25:49:221 | 2016-01-12118:25-09.1512 w2-sm-c1b3 Hostd: error hostd[48E81870] [Originator06876 sub=SoapAdapter.HTIPService.HttpConnection] Failed to read header on stream <io_obj '0.0.0.0:0'="" <tcp="" h:33,="" p:0x4c441f74,="">, <tcp '0.0.0.0:0'="">, <tcp '0.0.0:0'="">, <tcp '0.0.0.0:0'="">, <tcp '0.0.0:0'="">, <tcp '0.0.0.0:0'="">, <tcp '0.0.0:0'="">, <tcp '0.0.0:0'="" '0.0.0:0'<="" tcp="">, <tcp '0.<="" td=""></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></tcp></io_obj> |
| | 2016-01-12 12:25:45.681 | 2016-01-12118:25:45.6682 w2-mgstpm-14.mgstplacal Vpxa: error vpxa[74A09870] [Originator06876 sub-hostdstats op1D-4894286e-c8] [VpxaHalStatsHostagent::GetDvsStats] Did not get any entity metrics from the host. source even[hype hoshname appname vmw_essi_seventy vmw_opid |
| | 2016-01-12 12:25:45.680 | 2016-01-12[18:25:45.6682 w2-mgmtpm-14.mgmt.local Vpxa: error vpxa[74409870] [Originator06876 sub-hostdstats opID=4894286e-c8] [VpxaHalStatsHostagent::GetDvsStats] Did not get any entity metrics from the host. |

All events in the list will be colorized according to their event type. This capability allows you to quickly see different event types in context within the message list. You are quickly able to correlate logs in the same time frame to determine if an issue is impacting multiple objects in the environment and where numerous issues might be contributing to a larger problem. Once that information is clear, filters can be added to further refine which log data is relevant to your search and analysis efforts.

Hover the mouse cursor over a log message and click the **Gear** next to any log message.

View Event in Context

| \$- | 2016-01-12 | 2016-01-12 | 10:26:03,275 | ERROR | [Pop | | |
|-----|--|---------------|--------------|-------|------|--|--|
| A | dd Filter: | | | | P. | | |
| | Events Like This | | | | | | |
| | Events Not Like | This | | | p | | |
| | Highlight Events Like This | | | | | | |
| | Colorize Event | Types | | | p | | |
| | Set Time Range | e From This E | Event | | e | | |
| (| View Event In Context | | | | | | |
| | Open Analysis in vRealize Operations Manager © | | | | | | |

Log Insight allows you to view log events in real time and in context with other log events. This view can be very helpful if you are attempting to troubleshoot an issue as logs are being ingested.

Click View Event in Context

View Event in Context - Continued



This view provides infinite scroll, simply scroll up or down to view additional log messages. If Highlight or Colorize Event Types was selected, the colorization will persist in this view as well.

- 1. Filters can be added to constrain visible log messages
- 2. Searches the log message for filter matches.

3. Scroll through the list of logs and add a filter to get the feel of the interface. Click \mathbf{X} when you are finished.

Event Trends

| | Latest 6 hours of data 👻 🕻 | ٩ |
|------------|---|-----|
| 🕈 Add Filt | 2016.92=02 02:29:05.889 to 2016-02-02 08:2 | 9:0 |
| Events | ield Table Event Types Event Trends 1 | • |
| | 314 increasing and 313 decreasing event types compared to Previous 6 hours 🔹 👔 | |
| + | 2016-02-02T10:25:03.512695Z localhost.localdom [liagent06876 filepath="/data/vcops/log/analytics-a1b50c3a-0732-4d1e-ab7e- 54ce8551b019.log" vmw_vr_ops_appname="vROps" vmw_vr_ops_clustername="VROPS-EMDEMO" vmw_vr_ops_clusterrole="Master" vmw_vr_ops_hostname="vrops-emdemo.mgmt.local" vmw_vr_ops_logtype="ANALYTICS" vmw_vr_ops_nodename="vR0elize Cluster Node"] 2016- 02-02 02:25:03,312 INFORMATION [DTWrapper] com.vmware.vcops.dt.DTWrapper.waitForWorkItemsToProcess - DT Queue Size:689 Used Memory(MB):6279 Free Mem(MB):5670 Total Mem(MB):11949 Max mem(MB):12744 33 events of this type (Expand) | |
| + | 2016-02-02T13:09:02.222Z w2-sm-c1b2 Hostd:> message = <unset>, 20 events of this type (Expand)</unset> | |
| + | 2016-02-02T10:25:03.512666Z localhost.localdom [liagent@6876 filepath="/data/vcops/log/analytics-alb50c3a-0732-4d1e-ab7e- 54ce8551b019.log" vmm_vr_ops_appname="vROps" vmm_vr_ops_clustername="VROPS-EMDEMO" vmm_vr_ops_clusterrole="Master" vmm_vr_ops_hostname="vrops-emdemo.mgmt.local" vmm_vr_ops_logtype="ANALYTICS" vmm_vr_ops_nodename="vRealize Cluster Node"] 2016- 02-02 02:25:03,312 INFORMATION [DTWrapper] com.vmware.vcops.dt.DTWrapper.constructDTWorkItemsForPortionsMode - Used Memory(MB):6253 Free Mem(MB):15696 Total Mem(MB):11949 Max mem(MB):12744 10 events of this type (Expand) | |

1. Click the **Event Trends Tab**.

With Event Trends, you are able to determine if event volumes are changing over time, in other words whether Log Insight is detecting anomalous behavior in the log messages.

2. Log Insight provides a second time range in Event trends. The time range drop down menu controls the previous time frame where event types will be compared. Log Insight then initiates a query to compare events between the two time ranges that have been configured. We determine which events are changing between those time ranges. Log messages are examined to understand the similarity or difference among event types. For example, are we seeing new events types or are there reoccurring event types? Are event types unchanged between the two time ranges?

The second time drop down helps correlate events over different time windows. This is a great way to look at specific time windows, for instance looking at the same backup times across different days to view and understand problems or changes which may have occurred during each backup run.

3. **Green, grey, or red badges** indicate how event types are changing. Green indicates an increase in the number of event types, grey means they have remained the same, red tells us they are happening less frequently. An increase in the number of event types might indicate a problem and depending on the issue, might warrant further investigation.

Quick Links



- 1. Add Current Query to Favorites
- 2. Add Current Query to Dashboard
- 3. Create or Manage Alerts
- 4. Export or Share Current Query

Create Favorite Query

| Add Query to F | avorites | | |
|----------------|------------------------------|--------|------|
| Name: | | | |
| Notes: | B <i>I</i> <u>U</u> <i>∉</i> | | |
| | 2 | | 3 |
| | | Cancel | Save |

- 1. Name your query.
- 2. Add notes for additional information, troubleshooting steps, or Web URLs
- 3. Click Save when finished.

Favorite Query Location

| | 🚖 🔪 Latest 5 minutes of data 🔹 🔍 | |
|------------------|---|-----------------------------|
| (Type to filter | 16:38:11.130 to 2016-01-17 16:43: | 11.129 |
| Favorite Queries | t of 205 event types Sort: Increasing First - | Field |
| Errors | s compared to Previous 50 minutes 👻 👔 | + a |
| IP Conflict | une uCastor Archestertor | + b + cl + cl + cl |
| Logon Failure | d47c34e5.vswp | |
| | /1.1] | + e + e |

Click **the favorites button** to view and use favorite queries.

Add Current Query to Dashboard

| Add Query to Dashbo | ard | |
|---------------------|---|--|
| Name: | Count of Error events over time grouped by Hostname | |
| Dashboard: | My vSphere Dashboard - 2 | |
| Widget Type: | Query List V 3 | |
| Query List: | Error Query - 4 | |
| Notes: | B I U & | |
| | Optional 5 | |
| | 6 | |
| | Cancel Add | |

You may also add the current query to a dashboard. The main difference between this option and other options is you can choose the widget type to use with a query. Widget types include, chart, query list, or field table.

Click the Quick Link Add Current Query to Dashboard

- 1. Name your widget.
- 2. Choose the dashboard you created previously.
- 3. Click the **Widget Type** drop down and select query list.
- 4. Name your query Error Query.
- 5. Notes and Web URL can be added to the widget.
- 6. Click Add.

Create an Alert

| New Alert | | |
|-----------------|--|----|
| Name: Notes: | Error Alert 1 B I U P Optional. These notes are included in the notification message when the alert is fired. | |
| Enable: | Email: Email address(es) separated by commas Send to vRealize Operations Manager Default Object: Select. @ Criticality: none | |
| Raise a | n alert: ny match n more than v 1 matches are found in the last 5 Minutes v 4 | |
| The que | r will run every 1 minute and will only alert once for the defined threshold above. | |
| | 500 0.5 | |
| | Cancel Sa | ve |

Users create alerts from queries or leverage alerts often included with content packs. Notes are useful additions to alerts and allow, for example, context on the alert a knowledge base article or resolution steps for a given issue. Once integration between Log Insight and vRealize Operations Manager is enabled, alerts can be forwarded to vRealize Operations Manager. Alerts are sent to matching objects in the vRealize Operations inventory or the default object, if a match is not found in the log message.

It is important to note that user alerts are separate from system alerts and that admins can only disable all alerts at once not individual user created alerts.

Click the **Create or Manager alerts quick link** and **choose Create Alerts** from Query.

1. Name the alert.

2. Add notes that provide additional detail. The notes will be included in the notification message. Often troubleshooting or resolution steps are included in the notes field.

3. Enable email notifications and/or notifications in vRealize Operations Manager. The vRealize Operations Manager integration must be enabled first. Integration steps are covered in the appendix of this evaluation guide.

4. Choose to Raise an alert at an interval that is appropriate for the issue and your environment. The default settings with the word Error will typically result in a large number of notification messages.

5. Click Save to complete creation of the alert

(**Note:** When you click the Create or Manage alerts quick link, you also have the option to manage existing alerts. Alerts that are installed with content packs or previously created user alerts can be modified to suit your needs.)

Share a Query



Queries can be shared with other Log Insight users. This is particularly useful when a complicated query is created. Click Export or Share a Query. Select Share Query and the a link will be presented that can be shared with other users.



Windows Content Pack

These steps assume the Windows Content Pack and Windows agent was installed after the install and configuration of Log Insight and is not covered in this evaluation guide.

We will navigate back to the Dashboard view and look at the Windows Content Pack Dashboards.

1. Click Dashboards.

2. Click the Dashboards drop down menu and select the **Microsoft - Windows Content Pack Dashboard**.

Notice the dashboard contains several sections focused on common Windows troubleshooting scenarios. Verify the **General - Overview** dashboard is selected.

3. Examine the widgets in this dashboard. Log events are visualized using different chart options. Click the magnifying glass on the **Total number of critical and error events over time** widget.



Examine Windows Events in Interactive Analytics

1. Similarly to the vSphere content pack example, we are transitioned to **Interactive Analytics** with the widget's filter information already added. Each field filter pertains to elements of Windows event log channels and issue severity. Browse through the list of log messages to get a feel for the information Log Insight has collected.

2. Click **Dashboards**.

Windows Logon Failures Example



Once you have transitioned back to the **Microsoft - Windows** content pack, click **Security - Logon Failures**.

This dashboard is particularly useful for viewing logon failures within your Windows environment. An **Active Directory** Content Pack is available that offers similar dashboards for logon events.

(**Note:** If you are not finding sufficient log data, in this or other dashboards and queries, remember you can always increase your time range to include additional log messages in the search.)

Appendix

vRealize Operations Integration

| vmware vRealize Operations Manager | | | | | | |
|--|--|--------------------------|-----------------|---------------|-----------|--|
| Content 🔻 🕅 🔶 🖬 🖏 Solutions | | | | | | |
| A Solutions | 🕂 💣 📥 Show: All Solutions | | | | | |
| 💼 Credentials | Name | | Description | Version | | |
| Policies | Provide the service Network of the service Ne | fonitoring | The End Point | 1.0.3030318 | | |
| Inventory Explorer | Management Pack for Storage Device: | S | VMware vCent | 6.0.2.2977005 | | |
| N Object Relationships | 🕝 VMware vSphere | | Manages vSp | 6.0.3038034 | | |
| Baintenance Schedules | Mware vRealize Operations Management Pack for Log Insight | | VMware vReal | 6.0.3171089 | | |
| 😤 Access Control | | | | | | |
| 🐝 Cluster Management 🔍 Certificates | | | | | | |
| Settings | VMware vRealize Operations Management Pack for Log Insight Solution Details | | | | | |
| 🔐 Audit | S 0 0 | | | | | |
| 🗊 Recent Tasks | Adapter Type | Adapter Instance Name | Credential name | | Collector | |
| n Collector Groups | vRealize Log Insight Adapter | Configuration not needed | N/A | | N/A | |
| ♣ Global Settings ✿ Support | | | | | | |

Log Insight Integration with vRealize Operations Manager Overview video

This portion of the evaluation guide assumes a functioning installation of **vRealize Operations Manager 6.X** is available for the evaluation.

Navigate to Administration

| 2 | admin • 1 = • |
|---|----------------|
| 2 | Administration |
| | Content Packs |
| | Help |
| | About |

Login to Log Insight if required.

1. On the upper right portion of the Log Insight interface, click the **three bars**.

2. Select Administration.

| Management | vRealize Operations Integration |
|--|--|
| System Monitor Cluster Access Control | vRealize Operations Manager @ Hostname vrops.mgmt.local |
| Hosts Agents Event Forwarding License | Username admin 2 2 2 Enable launch in context a 3 |
| Integration vSphere vRealize Operations | Save |

Enable Integration

1. Click vRealize Operations.

2. Enter your admin user credentials for vRealize Operations Manager. Click **Test Connection**.

3. Verify that **Enable alerts integration** and **enable launch in context** are selected.

4. Click Save.

Registration Successful



Once registration is successful click OK.

Test Launching from Log Insight

| Events Field Table Event Types | Event Trends |
|--|---|
| Add Filter: | z esx-02a.corp.local_vslog[4296411]: hostd probing is done. vmw_datavmw_object_id_vmw_vcenter_vmw_vcenter_id |
| Events Like This Events Not Like This | <pre>v2a.corp.local hostd-probe: [FFE007E0 info 'ThreadPool'] vmw_datacenter vmw_object_id vmw_vcenter vmw_vcenter_id</pre> |
| Highlight Events Like This Colorize Event Types | 2a.corp.local hostd-probe: [FFEE5B70 info 'ThreadPool'] vmw_datacenter vmw_object_id vmw_vcenter vmw_vcenter_id |
| Set Time Range From This Event | 2a.corp.local hostd-probe: [FFE63B70 info 'ThreadPool'] vmw_datacenter vmw_object_id vmw_vcenter vmw_vcenter_id |
| Open Analysis in vRealize Operations M | anager vmw_datacenter vmw_object_id vmw_vcenter vmw_vcenter_id |

Navigate to Interactive Analytics.

1. Notice new fields have been added for many vSphere related log messages. These fields contain parent object information and often the vRealize Operations ID. This is an example of the integration at work. You now have access to the vRealize Operations inventory data in Log Insight. Logs will be matched to objects in the vRealize Operations inventory.

2. Choose a log message for a Host or VM in your environment, hover the mouse cursor over the message. Click the **gear icon** on the left side of the message.

3. Click **Open Analysis in vRealize Operations Manager**. You will be launched into vRealize Operations Manager to the object matched with the log message.



Test Launching from vRealize Operations

You are also able to launch into Log Insight from vRealize Operations Manager.

1. From vRealize Operations Manager, select a vSphere object, for example a vCenter Server or Host, then click the **Actions menu**.

2. Select Search for logs in vRealize Log Insight.

Log Insight will open with a filter added for the object that was selected in vRealize Operations Manager.

Configure an Alert

| New Alert |
|--|
| Name: Error Alert Notes: B I U P Optional. These notes are included in the notification message when the alert is fired. |
| Enable: |
| Raise an alert: |
| When more than 1 matches are found in the last 5 Minutes |
| ● When more than ▼ 1 events occur in a single group in the last 5 Minutes ▼ |
| The query will run every 1 minute and will only alert once for the defined threshold above. |
| Cancel Save |

Alerts are covered in the User Interface portion of this evaluation guide. Once vRealize Operations integration is enabled you can send alerts to vRealize Operations Manager. Log Insight will automatically match hostnames in the log message to vRealize Operations Manager objects. This means that alerts will appear in vRealize Operations Manager as notification events with the matched object. If a match is not made, the notification event will be assigned to the default object. Using the default object is required so alerts are sent for objects that do not have a match in the vRealize Operations Manager inventory database.

1. Click Send to vRealize Operations Manager.

2. Enter a **Default Object**, a vCenter server or vSphere World object can be used. In a non-match situation, the notification events will appear with the default object in vRealize Operations Manager.

Install Cluster Nodes



The following steps assume at least one Log Insight cluster node is already installed and running on the same Layer 2 network. Log Insight supports 1, 3 or more nodes up to 12 in a cluster instance.

The linked video walks through the cluster installation process: <u>Log Insight</u> <u>Cluster Node Installation and Configuration video</u>

1. Go through the Log Insight OVA installation steps then navigate in a supported web browser to the newly installed node FQDN or IP address to begin

2. Click Next

Choose Deployment Type

| Choose Deployment Type | |
|--|---|
| Are you starting a new Log Insight of (If this is your first time running Log Ir | leployment or joining an existing one? nsight, choose "Start New Deployment".) |
| Join Existing Deployment | Start New Deployment |
| | |

Select Join Existing Deployment.

Connect to Log Insight Master

| Join Existing Deployment |
|--|
| Enter the fully qualified domain name (FQDN) of the Log Insight master @ |
| Master FQDN Go |
| Back |

Enter the **FQDN or IP address of the Log Insight Master**. This is typically the initial node in the cluster. You can confirm the Master by navigating to Administration on an existing Log Insight node and selecting Cluster. The Master information will be listed alongside the Node hostname.

Click Go.

Access the Cluster Management Page

| Join Existing Deployment |
|--|
| Request to join was received successfully. |
| To complete the process, you will need to access the Cluster Management page on the master and authorize this worker to join. |
| Worker IP: |
| Click here to access the Cluster Management page |

Confirm the Work IP information.

Confirm the Worker IP address. Click the Click here to access the Cluster Management page link.

Worker Node Join Request

| VMWare Log Insight | Dashboards Q Interactive Analytics |
|---|--|
| Management System Monitor | Cluster |
| Cluster Access Control Hosts Agents | has requested to be added as a worker Deny Allow Nodes |
| Event Forwarding License | Host Uptime Version Monitor 12 days 20 hours 3.0.0 Monitor |
| Integration vSphere vRealize Operations | Log Insight is currently operating in standalone mode. You can create a cluster by adding one or more additional nodes. To add a node, deploy a new Log Insight instance and choose "Join Deployment" in the startup wizard. |
| Configuration General Time | Upgrade From PAK Download Support Bundle |
| Authentication SMTP | |
| Archiving SSL | |

Click **Allow**.

| | Dashboards Q Interactive A | Analytics | | | | |
|------------------------------|----------------------------|------------------|-----------|-----------|----------------|-------------|
| Management System Monitor | Cluster | | | | | |
| Cluster | Nodes | | | | Filter by host | \square |
| Access Control | Host | ▲ Uptime | Version 🔶 | Monitor | Status | Actions |
| Hosts | Master) | 12 days 20 hours | 3.0.0 | Monitor 🔘 | Connected | |
| Agents | 1 | 8 minutes | 3.0.0 | Monitor © | Connected | 11 × 1 |
| Event Forwarding | Ŭ | 25 minutes | 3.0.0 | Monitor O | Connected | $II \times$ |
| Integration | | | | | | |

Confirm the New Cluster Node and Enable ILB

1. Your worker node is now added to the Cluster instance. **A minimum of three cluster nodes is required in a multi-node installation**. Information about each node is presented.

 The Integrated Load Balancer (ILB) automatically balances ingestion across all nodes in the cluster. To enable the Integrated Load Balancer, enter a unique IP address and optional Full Qualified Domain Name (FQDN) in their respective fields. Click the Enable Integrated Load Balancer checkbox.

3. Click Save.

(**Note:** vSphere integration and any log endpoints will need to be reconfigured to use the integrated load balancer virtual IP.)

Enable ILB

| Cluster | | | | | |
|----------------------------------|------------------|-----------|-----------|----------------|------------------------------|
| Nodes | | | (| Filter by host | |
| Host 🔺 | Uptime \$\\$ | Version 🔶 | Monitor | Status 🔶 | Actions |
| (Master) (ILB) | 12 days 21 hours | 3.0.0 | Monitor O | Connected | |
| | 12 minutes | 3.0.0 | Monitor O | Connected | II × |
| | 30 minutes | 3.0.0 | Monitor O | Connected | $\parallel \times \parallel$ |
| Configuration | | | | | |
| Configuration | | | | | |
| 🕑 Enable Integrated Load Balance | er 📀 | | | | |
| IP Address | | | | | |
| FQDN (optional) | | | | | |
| Status • Available | | | | | |
| Save | | | | | |

1. Once the ILB is enabled, the node hosting the load balancer will be listed in the cluster management interface.

(**Note:** ILB placement is determined during an election process. The ILB can run on any node in the cluster.)

Log Insight System Monitor

| 2 | admin $1 \equiv 1$ |
|---|--------------------|
| 2 | Administration |
| | Content Packs |
| | Help |
| | About |

If required:

1. On the upper right portion of the Log Insight interface, click the **three bars**.

2. Select Administration.

System Monitor

| VMWare Log Insight 📃 | Dashboards Q Interactive Analytics |
|----------------------|--|
| Management | System Monitor |
| System Monitor | |
| Cluster | Resources Active Queries Statistics C |
| Access Control | |
| Hosts | |
| Agents | Show resources for: (Master) |
| Event Forwarding | |
| License | CPU (2 Cores) |
| Integration | Last 5 minutes: Last 24 hours: |
| vSphere | 100% |
| vRealize Operations | |
| Configuration | 0% |
| General | |
| Time | |
| Authentication | Memory and Swap |
| SMTP | Memory Swap Last 24 hours: |
| Archiving | 100% |
| SSL | |
| | 3.4 GB of 3.9 GB 228.8 MB of 4.0 GB 0% |
| | |
| | |
| | Total Read and Write Operations |
| | Last 5 minutes: Last 24 hours: |
| | |
| | man warmen manuna man and the man and the second an |
| | |
| | Keanazaec Mainezaec |

Click System Monitor.

1. System monitor will display information on the selected node. Resource utilization and capacity data helps determine if **resources** are sufficient. Incoming event rates and advanced **statistics** such as query metrics and ingestion queue are also available. **Active queries** show currently running queries including the ability to cancel queries that are too expensive. Admins can configure system notifications or suspend all user alerts when the need arises.